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For the year ended 31 March 2006

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Wing Hing International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated with limited liability in Bermuda under

the Companies Act of Bermuda. The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 December 1995.

The Company’s registered office is situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. The

principal place of business of the Company is located at 14th Floor, Yau Lee Centre, 45 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong,

Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders at the special general meeting of the

Company held on 9 December 2005, the name of the Company was changed from “CIG-WH International (Holdings)

Limited” to “Wing Hing International (Holdings) Limited” with effect from 20 December 2005.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the undertaking of superstructure construction, foundation

piling, substructure works, slope improvement, special construction projects, interior decoration and landscaping

works in Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred

to as the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted in changes

to the Group’s accounting policies in the following areas that have an effect on how the results for the current or

prior accounting years are prepared and presented:

CHANGES IN PRESENTATION

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests, share of tax of jointly-controlled entities and associates, and

other disclosures.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CHANGES IN PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

MINORITY INTERESTS

In prior years, minority interests in the results of the Group for the year were separately presented in the consolidated

income statement as a deduction before arriving at profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders (the equity holders of the

Company). With effect from 1 April 2005, in order to comply with HKAS 1, the Group has changed its accounting

policy relating to the presentation of minority interests. Under the new policy, minority interests are presented in the

consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between minority interests and

equity holders of the Company, and are presented as part of equity, separately from interests attributable to the

equity holders of the Company on the consolidated balance sheet. These changes in presentation have been applied

retrospectively with comparatives restated.

SHARE OF NET AFTER-TAX RESULTS OF JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES, ASSOCIATES AND OTHER

DISCLOSURES

In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of jointly-controlled entities and associates accounted for using the equity

method was included as part of the Group’s income tax in the consolidated income statement. With effect from 1

April 2005, in accordance with the implementation guidance in HKAS 1, the Group has changed the presentation

and includes the share of taxation of jointly controlled entities and associates accounted for using the equity method

in the respective shares of profit or loss reported in the consolidated income statement before arriving at the Group’s

profit or loss before tax. These changes in presentation have been applied retrospectively with comparatives restated.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” (“HKFRS 3”) which is effective for

business combination for which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 and for goodwill and negative

goodwill existed on or before 1 January 2005. The principal effects of the application of transitional provision of

HKFRS 3 to the Group are summarized below:

GOODWILL

In previous years, goodwill arising on acquisition was capitalized and amortized over its estimated useful life. The

Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 with respect to goodwill arising on acquisitions of

subsidiaries presented separately in the balance sheet. The Group on 1 April 2005 eliminated the carrying amount of

the related accumulated amortization with a corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill. The Group has

discontinued amortizing such goodwill from 1 April 2005 onwards and such goodwill will be tested for impairment at

least annually. Goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 January 2005 is measured at cost less accumulated impairment

losses (if any) after initial recognition. As a result of this change in accounting policy, no amortization of goodwill has

been charged in the current year. In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3, comparative amounts

have not been restated.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

In the current year, the Group has, for the first time, applied HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. The Group has elected

to use the fair value model to account for its investment property which requires gains or losses arising from changes

in the fair value of investment property to be recognized directly in profit or loss for the year in which they arise. In

previous years, investment property under the predecessor standard was measured at open market values, with

revaluation surplus or deficits credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance

on this reserve was insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease

over the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve was charged to the income statement. Where a

decrease had previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation surplus subsequently arose, that

increase was credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. The Group has

applied the relevant transitional rules in HKAS 40 and elected to apply HKAS 40 retrospectively. As a result of the

change in accounting policy, the investment property revaluation reserve of approximately HK$4,649,000 as at 1 April

2004 has been transferred to the Group’s retained profits. Other operating income for the years ended 31 March

2005 and 31 March 2006 has been increased by approximately HK$1,650,000 and HK$400,000 respectively.

OWNER-OCCUPIED LEASEHOLD INTEREST IN LAND

In previous years, owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings were included in property, plant and equipment and

measured using the revaluation model. In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under HKAS 17,

the land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease

classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, in

which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the allocation of the lease

payments between the land and buildings elements can be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land are

reclassified to prepaid lease payments under operating leases, which are carried at cost and amortized over the lease

term on a straight-line basis. This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively with comparatives

restated.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS 39

“Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. HKAS 32 requires retrospective application. HKAS 39, which is

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, generally does not permit the recognition,

derecognition or measurement of financial assets and liabilities on a retrospective basis. The principal effects resulting

from the implementation of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 are summarized below:
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

The principal impact of HKAS 32 on the Group is in relation to the Convertible Note issued by the Company that

contains both liability and equity components. Previously, the Convertible Note was classified as liabilities on the

balance sheet. HKAS 32 requires an issuer of a compound financial instrument that contains both financial liability and

equity components to separate the compound financial instrument into the liability and equity components on initial

recognition and to account for these components separately. In subsequent periods, the liability component is carried

at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 39 with respect to the classification and

measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities that are within the scope of HKAS 39.

DEBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES PREVIOUSLY ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER THE BENCHMARK TREATMENT OF

STATEMENT OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAP”) 24

By 31 March 2005, the Group classified and measured its debt and equity securities in accordance with the benchmark

treatment of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24 (SSAP 24). Under SSAP 24, investments in debt or equity

securities are classified as “investment securities”, “other investments” or “held-to-maturity investments” as appropriate.

“Investment securities” are carried at cost less impairment losses (if any) while “other investments” are measured at fair

value, with unrealized gains or losses included in profit or loss. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized

cost less impairment losses (if any). From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured its debt and

equity securities in accordance with HKAS 39.

Under HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale

financial assets”, “loans and receivables” or “held-to-maturity financial assets”. “Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss” and “available-for-sale financial assets” are carried at fair value, with changes in fair values recognized in

profit or loss and equity respectively. Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have quoted market prices in an

active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled

by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost less impairment after initial recognition. “Loans

and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets” are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method after initial recognition.

The adoption of this new standard has had no material effect on how the results for the prior accounting years are

prepared and presented. Accordingly, no adjustment has been required on 1 April 2005.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES OTHER THAN DEBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES

From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured its financial assets and financial liabilities other

than debt and equity securities (which were previously outside the scope of SSAP 24) in accordance with the

requirements of HKAS 39. As mentioned above, financial assets under HKAS 39 are classified as “financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables” or “held-to-maturity financial

assets”. Financial liabilities are generally classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” or “other

financial liabilities”. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in

fair value being recognized in profit or loss directly. Other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the

effective interest method after initial recognition. Save for the Convertible Note, this change has had no material effect

on the results for the current and prior accounting periods.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” which requires an expense to be

recognized where the Group buys goods or obtains services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equity-

settled transactions”), or in exchange for other assets equivalent in value to a given number of shares or rights over

shares (“cash-settled transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation to the expensing of

the fair value of share options granted to directors and employees of the Company, determined at the date of grant

of the share options, over the vesting period. Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group did not recognize the

financial effect of these share options until they were exercised. The Group is required to apply HKFRS 2 retrospectively

to share options that were granted after 7 November 2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January 2005. The adoption

of this new standard has had no material effect on how the results for the prior accounting years are prepared and

presented as the Company has no share options granted as of 31 March 2006.

SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effect on the balances of equity at 1 April 2004

HKAS 1 HKAS 17 HKAS 40 Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Decrease in asset revaluation reserve – 296 – 296

Decrease in investment property revaluation reserve – – 4,649 4,649

Increase in retained profits – (22) (4,649) (4,671)

Increase in minority interests (3,018) – – (3,018)

Increase in total equity (2,744)
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables disclose the adjustments that have been made in accordance with the transitional provision of

the respective new and revised HKFRSs to the affected items in the consolidated income statement and balance sheet

as previously reported for the year ended 31 March 2005 as a result of the changes in accounting policies.

Effect on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2005

HKAS 17 HKAS 40 HKAS 32 Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Increase in amortization of

prepaid land lease payments 17 – – 17

Decrease in depreciation (23) – – (23)

Increase in finance costs – – 397 397

Decrease in gain on revaluation of leasehold land 162 – – 162

Increase in gain on revaluation of

investment property – (1,650) – (1,650)

(Increase)/decrease in profit for the year 156 (1,650) 397 (1,097)

(Increase)/decrease in basic earnings

per share (in cents) 0.54 (5.74) 1.38 (3.82)

(Increase)/decrease in diluted earnings

per share (in cents) 0.46 (4.87) 1.17 (3.24)

Effect on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2005

HKAS 17 HKAS 40 HKAS 32 Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Increase in prepaid land lease payments 709 – – 709

Decrease in property, plant and equipment (1,850) – – (1,850)

Increase in other payables and accruals – – (7) (7)

Decrease in Convertible Note – – 282 282

Decrease in asset revaluation reserve 1,007 – – 1,007

Increase in Convertible Note equity reserve – – (672) (672)

Decrease in investment property revaluation reserve – 6,299 – 6,299

(Increase)/decrease in retained profits 134 (6,299) 397 (5,768)
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables provide estimates of the extent to which the affected items in the consolidated income statement

and balance sheet for the year ended 31 March 2006 is higher or lower than it would have been had the previous

policies still been applied in the year, where it is practicable to make such estimates. In addition, the adjustments that

have been made to the opening balances as at 1 April 2005, which are the aggregate effect of retrospective

adjustments as at 31 March 2005, the opening balance adjustments made as at 1 April 2005 to each of the affected

items in the consolidated balance sheet are also included.

Effect on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2006

HKAS 36

HKAS 17 HKAS 40 & HKFRS 3 HKAS 32 Total

- HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Increase in amortization of prepaid land

lease payments 17 – – – 17

Decrease in depreciation (23) – – – (23)

Increase in gain on revaluation of

investment property – (400) – – (400)

Decrease in amortization of goodwill – – (577) – (577)

Increase in finance costs – – – 48 48

Increase/(decrease) in loss for the year (6) (400) (577) 48 (935)

Increase/(decrease) in basic loss

per share (in cents) (0.02) (1.15) (1.66) 0.14 (2.69)

Increase/(decrease) in diluted loss

per share (in cents) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS42
For the year ended 31 March 2006

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Effect on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2006

HKAS 36

HKAS 17 HKAS 40 & HKFRS 3 HKAS 32 Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Decrease in cost of goodwill – – (577) – (577)

Decrease in accumulated amortization

of goodwill – – 1,154 – 1,154

Increase in prepaid land lease payments 692 – – – 692

Decrease in property, plant and equipment (2,650) – – – (2,650)

Increase in share premium – – – (445) (445)

Decrease in asset revaluation reserve 1,807 – – – 1,807

Decrease in investment property

revaluation reserve – 400 – – 400

(Increase)/decrease in retained profits 151 (400) (577) 445 (381)

The HKICPA has issued the following standards and interpretations that are not yet effective. The Group has considered

the following standards and interpretations but does not expect they will have a material effect on how the results of

operations and financial position of the Group are prepared and presented.

Notes

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures 1

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures 2

HKAS 21 (Amendment) Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 2

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions 2

HKAS 39 (Amendment) The Fair Value Option 2

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts 2

(Amendments)

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 2

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1

HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease 2

HKFRS-Int 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, 2

Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market 3

– Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29 4

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 6
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006

3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005

4. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006

5. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

6. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for investment property,

certain property, plant and equipment, and financial instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated

financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement

from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity

therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and

the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess

of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent

that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at

the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity

instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the

business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, where appropriate, are

recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date.

A subsidiary is a company that is controlled by the Company, where the Company has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies of such company so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of

the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities recongized. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is

recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair

value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.

JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company which is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the

participating parties having unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly-controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements

using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly-controlled entities are carried

in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit or

loss and of changes in equity of the jointly-controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s

share of losses of a jointly-controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly-controlled entity, the Group

discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is

recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that jointly-controlled entity.

Where the Group transacts with its jointly-controlled entities, unrealized profits and losses are eliminated to the extent

of the Group’s interest in the joint venture.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest

in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity

method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance

sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any

impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that

associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Groups’ net investment in the

associate) are not recognised.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is

included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any

excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the

cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

GOODWILL

CAPITALIZED GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION PRIOR 1 JANUARY 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary for which the agreement date is before 1 January 2005 represents the

excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalized goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 January 2001, the Group has discontinued

amortization from 1 April 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is

an indication that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

CAPITALIZED GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly-controlled entity represents the excess of

the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, associate or jointly-controlled entity recognized at the date of acquisition. Goodwill

is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment

losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON CAPITALIZED GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to

benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested

for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is

allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the

unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity or an associate, the attributable amount of

goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment properties, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable

costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after

property plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged

to the income statement account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated

that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use

of the property plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalized as an additional cost of that asset.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment, other than investment properties, are dealt with as

movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual

basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is

credited to the income statement account to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued

property, plant and equipment, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realized in respect of previous

valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation of each asset over its estimated

useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Medium term leasehold buildings Over the lease terms

Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset

(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in

the income statement in the year in which the item is derecognized.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value at

the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment property are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at

fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial

liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or

deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognized immediately in the income statement.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets of the Group are classified as “available-for-sale financial assets” and “loans and receivables”. “Available-

for-sale financial assets” are carried at fair value, with changes in fair values recognized in equity. Available-for-sale

equity investments that do not have quoted market prices in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably

measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are

measured at cost less impairment after initial recognition. “Loans and receivables” are measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest method after initial recognition.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in

an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including

accounts and other receivables) are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement when there is objective evidence that

the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of

the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in

subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event

occurring after the impairment was recognized, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the

date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognized.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale equity investments are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in

any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the

investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a

quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost

less any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss

is recognized in the income statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the

impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and the present value of the

estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of

its liabilities.

The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities including accounts payables, other payables and accruals and bank borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

Convertible note issued by the Group that contain both financial liability and equity components are classified

separately into respective liability and equity components on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of

the liability component is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The

difference between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible note and the fair value assigned to the liability

component, representing the embedded option for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included in

equity (Convertible Note equity reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (CONTINUED)

CONVERTIBLE NOTE (CONTINUED)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible note is carried at amortized cost using the effective

interest method. The equity component, represented by the option to convert the liability component into ordinary

shares of the Company, will remain in Convertible Note equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in

which case the balance stated in Convertible Note equity reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the

option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in Convertible Note equity reserve will be released

to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement upon conversion or

expiration of the option.

Transaction costs, if any, relate to the issue of the convertible note are allocated to the liability and equity components

in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are charged

directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the

liability portion and amortized over the period of the convertible note using the effective interest method.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine

whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it

is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount

of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the

carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the

impairment loss in treated as a revaluation decrease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (OTHER THAN GOODWILL) (CONTINUED)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortization) had no impairment loss

been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as

income immediately unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case

the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that other standard.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that

the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the

expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where

the effect is material.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the

consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other

years, and it further excludes profit and loss items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for

using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary

differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available

against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the

temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of

other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except

where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the

asset is realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items charged

or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of

the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the

carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognized as a

reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognized by

reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion

that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except where this

would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments

are included to the extent that they have been agreed to the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized to the

extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will recoverable. Contract costs are recognized as an expense in

the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as

expense immediately.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial

statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the

functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the

transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the

rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary

items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items

carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of

non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary

items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign

operations (including comparatives) are expressed in Hong Kong dollars using the rate of exchange prevailing on the

balance sheet date. Income and expenses items (including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange

rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized as a separate

component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period

in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities

of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from construction contracts is recognized on the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the

accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above.

Service fee income is recognized when service is rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the

effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the

cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment

income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the

value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the

Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a

suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group evaluates whether items of property, plant and equipment have suffered any impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable, in

accordance with the stated accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been

determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortization charges for its property,

plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant

and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and

competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation and amortization

charges where useful lives are less than previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s policy for doubtful receivables is based on the on-going evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis

of the accounts and other receivables and on management’s judgments. Considerable judgment is required in

assessing the ultimate realization of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection

history of each debtor, and the present values of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest

rates. If the financial conditions of the Group’s debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability

to make payments, additional impairment loss of trade and other receivables may be required.

OUTCOME OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

The Group determines whether outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably. This requires a

continuous estimation of the total contract revenue and costs and stage of completion with reference to work

certified by architects and the assessment of the probability of the future economic flows to the Group.

INCOME TAXES

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group

carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such

transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislations. Where the final tax

outcome of these transactions is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact

the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments, trade and other receivables, bank balances and

cash, trade and other payables, Convertible Note and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed

in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these

risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

CURRENCY RISK

Certain accounts and other receivables, bank balances and cash and accounts and other payables of the Group are

denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,

the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as

at 31 March 2006 in relation to each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as

stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group has

delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to

ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable

amount of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In this regard, the management considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

CASH FLOW INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is mainly attributable to its borrowings issued at variable rates. The

Group has not hedged its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk. However, the management considered the risk is

insignificant to the Group.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by

business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately, according to the nature of their operations

and the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic business

unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other

business segments. Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) Superstructure construction works segment;

(b) Foundation piling, substructure works and slope improvement works segment;

(c) Special construction projects including civil engineering work, and electrical and mechanical works segment;

(d) Interior decoration works and landscaping segment; and

(e) Corporate and others segment, which comprises the Group’s investment holding, and trading of construction

machines and plastic products.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based on the location of

the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s business segments.

Foundation

piling, Interior

substructure decoration

Superstructure works and slope Special and

construction improvement construction landscaping Corporate

works works projects works and others Eliminations Consolidated

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(As restated)

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers 326,263 284,645 54,535 77,680 58,671 37,532 21,487 3,938 33,489 31,006 – – 494,445 434,801

Intersegment sales 287 1,380 4,055 6,830 2,882 17,955 34,661 8,044 – – (41,885) (34,209) – –

Total 326,550 286,025 58,590 84,510 61,553 55,487 56,148 11,982 33,489 31,006 (41,885) (34,209) 494,445 434,801

Segment results 32,523 9,308 17,780 11,946 (40,795) 4,781 8,709 (440) 3,954 15,154 1,277 3,771 23,448 44,520

Interest income and other

unallocated revenue

and gains 1,308 1,911

Unallocated expenses (44,877) (35,361)

(Loss)/profit from operations (20,121) 11,070

Finance costs (890) (870)

Share of profits less losses of

– Jointly-controlled entities 919 (1,903) 3,355 1,265 1,220 4,126 – – (4,694) 114 – – 800 3,602

– Associates – – – – – – – – (413) 176 – – (413) 176

(Loss)/profit before tax (20,624) 13,978

Taxation (369) 520

(Loss)/profit for the year (20,993) 14,498

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (22,336) 14,176

Minority interests 1,343 322

(20,993) 14,498
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Foundation

piling, Interior

substructure decoration

Superstructure works and slope Special and

construction improvement construction landscaping Corporate

works works projects works and others Eliminations Consolidated

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(As restated)

Segment assets 87,549 107,943 23,325 26,920 8,740 14,725 8,776 3,872 45,483 32,564 595 525 174,468 186,549

Interests in associates – – – – – – – – 17,704 10,770 – – 17,704 10,770

Interests in jointly-controlled

entities 3,183 2,265 (274) 1,270 6,005 9,170 – – 28,707 33,402 – – 37,621 46,107

Unallocated assets 41,717 50,494

Total assets 271,510 293,920

Segment liabilities 74,547 87,758 17,876 22,224 12,936 15,004 5,867 6,630 3,502 15,397 – 297 114,728 147,310

Unallocated liabilities 20,260 8,103

Total liabilities 134,988 155,413

Other segment information:

Depreciation and

amortization 465 346 361 280 14 14 179 95 4,449 3,360 – – 5,468 4,095

Other non-cash income/

(expenses), net 3,434 2,129 370 34 (16) (2,165) (9) (713) 1,217 904 (107) 328 4,889 517

Capital expenditure 24 102 281 – – – 419 80 189 6,069 – – 913 6,251

Addition to prepaid land

lease payments – – – – – – – – – 500 – – – 500

Gain on revaluation of

property, plant and

equipment recognized

directly in equity (278) (275) (275) (282) – – (24) (78) (3,501) (4,754) – – (4,078) (5,389)

(B) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are derived from customers and operations based in Hong Kong

and accordingly, no further analysis of the Group’s geographical segments is presented.
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7. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

Turnover represents the aggregate of the gross value of work earned from superstructure construction, foundation

piling, substructure works, slope improvement works, special construction projects, interior decoration and landscaping

works. All significant intra-group transactions within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover:

Undertaking of construction contract works 494,445 434,801

Other revenue:

Service fee income from:

– jointly-controlled entities 9,630 1,716

– an associate 125 865

– independent third parties 269 1,077

10,024 3,658

Interest income 908 261

Rental income from investment property 112 164

Rental income from machinery held for

operating lease purposes 832 1,948

Others 1,418 937

13,294 6,968
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8. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

(Loss)/Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging the following:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(As restated)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5,451 4,078

Less: Amounts capitalized in construction contracts (3,663) (2,044)

1,788 2,034

Minimum lease payments under operating leases:

Leasehold land and buildings 1,526 1,007

Less: Amounts capitalized in construction contracts (531) –

995 1,007

Plant and machinery 7,362 1,568

Less: Amounts capitalized in construction contracts (7,362) (1,568)

– –

995 1,007

Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)

Wages and salaries 56,651 31,895

Retirement benefits schemes contributions 1,758 1,221

Less: Amounts capitalized in construction contracts (38,489) (22,200)

19,920 10,916

Auditors’ remuneration 590 570

Amortization of prepaid land lease payments 17 17

Amortization of goodwill (included in administrative expenses) – 577

Cost of services provided 490,730 401,079
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9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(EXPENSES), NET

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(As restated)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (195) (26)

Loss on disposal of an associate (710) –

Provision for amounts due from contract customers (1,894) (2,487)

Gain on revaluation of an investment property 400 2,500

Gain on revaluation of leasehold buildings – 438

Loss on revaluation of plant and machinery and motor vehicles (58) –

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries – 92

Write back of long outstanding payables 7,346 –

4,889 517

10. FINANCE COSTS

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(As restated)

Interest on:

Bank loans and overdrafts

– wholly repayable within five years 754 377

– not wholly repayable within five years 68 –

Convertible Note wholly repayable within five years 68 493

890 870

No borrowing costs were capitalized during the year ended 31 March 2006 (2005: Nil).



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 61

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 6 W I N G  H I N G  I N T E R N A T I O N A L  ( H O L D I N G S )  L I M I T E D

For the year ended 31 March 2006

11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company is

based on the following data:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(As restated)

(Loss)/Earnings

(Loss)/Earnings for the purposes of basic (loss)/earnings

per share ((loss)/profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Company) (22,336) 14,176

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Interest on Convertible Note (net of tax) – 407

(Loss)/Earnings for the purposes of

diluted (loss)/earnings per share (22,336) 14,583

2006 2005

(As restated)

Number of shares (in thousand)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 348,537 287,500

Effect of Share Consolidation (which became

effective on 23 May 2006) (313,683) (258,750)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for the purposes of basic (loss)/earnings per share 34,854 28,750

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Convertible Note – 5,104

Warrants (anti-dilutive) – –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for the purposes of diluted (loss)/earnings per share 34,854 33,854

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to

the extent of approximately HK$6,159,000 (2005 (as restated): loss of approximately HK$397,000) (note 33).
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13. TAXATION

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current tax credit (43) (1,331)

Deferred tax charge (note 29) 412 811

Tax charge/(credit) for the year 369 (520)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

arising in Hong Kong during the year.

The tax charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to (loss)/profit before tax per income statement as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(As restated)

(Loss)/Profit before tax (20,624) 13,978

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 17.5% (3,610) 2,446

Tax effect of income not subject to tax (1,468) (1,484)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 1,804 2,523

Tax effect of utilization of tax losses (4,480) (2,673)

Others 8,123 (1,332)

Tax charge/(credit) for the year 369 (520)
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For the year ended 31 March 2006

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Company’s directors are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2006

Retirement

 benefits

Salaries and schemes

Fees allowances contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Mr. Ng Tat Leung, George – 1,570 12 1,582

Mr. Wong Teck Ming – 1,233 12 1,245

Mr. Chen Jinkui – – – –

Mr. Sun Haichao – – – –

Mr. Lui Siu Yee, Samuel – 730 12 742

Mr. Chan Wai Keung, Ivan – 883 12 895

Mr. Lo Chung Sun, Simon – 1,132 12 1,144

Non-executive director

Mr. Wang Xianzhang – – – –

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 80 – – 80

Mr. Lo Ka Wai 80 – – 80

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung 80 – – 80

Total 240 5,548 60 5,848
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2005

Retirement

 benefits

Salaries and schemes

Fees allowances  contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Mr. Ng Tat Leung, George – 1,424 12 1,436

Mr. Wong Teck Ming – 1,113 12 1,125

Mr. Chen Jinkui – – – –

Mr. Sun Haichao – – – –

Mr. Lui Siu Yee, Samuel – 559 12 571

Mr. Chan Wai Keung, Ivan – 883 12 895

Mr. Lo Chung Sun, Simon – 1,062 12 1,074

Mr. Zhang Xiaoshu

(resigned on 20 September 2004) – – –

Mr. Miao Jianmin

(resigned on 31 March 2005) – 200 – 200

Mr. Zheng Changyong

(resigned on 31 March 2005) – 200 – 200

Non-executive director

Mr. Wang Xianzhang – – – –

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 50 – – 50

Mr. Lo Ka Wai 50 – – 50

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung 50 – – 50

Total 150 5,441 60 5,651

There were no arrangements under which the directors of the Company have waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration.
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For the year ended 31 March 2006

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The amount of directors’ emoluments which is directly attributable to construction activities and capitalized in

construction contracts amounted to approximately HK$716,000 (2005: HK$716,000).

The directors’ emoluments shown above do not include the estimated monetary value of the Group’s owned

premises provided rent-free to a director. The estimated rental value of such accommodation was approximately

HK$96,000 (2005: HK$96,000) for the year ended 31 March 2006.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2006 included three directors (2005: four

directors) whose emoluments are set out above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining two (2005: one)

highest paid, non-director individuals are as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and allowances 3,044 1,308

Discretionary bonus – –

Retirement benefits schemes contributions 24 12

3,068 1,320

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals

2006 2005

HK$1,000,001 – HK$1,500,000 1 1

HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 1 –

2 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

COMPENSATION TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The directors of the Company consider that they are the only key management personnel of the Group and details of

their compensation have been set out above.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 1 April 2005/2004 4,000 1,500

Gain on revaluation during the year (note 9) 400 2,500

As at 31 March 2006/2005, at fair value 4,400 4,000

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and is held under medium term leases.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March 2006 was arrived at on the basis of a valuation

carried out at that date by AA Property Services Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open

market, existing use basis. The Group’s investment property is leased to third parties under operating leases, further

details of which are set out in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

At cost:

As at 1 April 2005/2004

As previously reported – –

Effect of adopting HKAS 17 800 300

As restated 800 300

Addition – 500

As at 31 March 2006/2005 800 800

Accumulated amortization:

As at 1 April 2005/2004

As previously reported – –

Effect of adopting HKAS 17 91 74

As restated 91 74

Amortization for the year 17 17

As at 31 March 2006/2005 108 91

Carrying amount:

As at 31 March 2006/2005 692 709

Representing:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong under medium-term lease 692 709
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Medium
term Furniture

leasehold Plant and and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost or valuation:
As at 1 April 2004
– as previously reported 1,900 12,700 8,426 1,075 24,101
– effect of adopting HKAS 17 (500) – – – (500)

– as restated 1,400 12,700 8,426 1,075 23,601
Additions 5,216 45 880 110 6,251
Disposals – (50) – (270) (320)
Acquisition of a subsidiary – 310 92 158 560
Revaluations 1,534 763 – 129 2,426

As at 31 March 2005 (restated) 8,150 13,768 9,398 1,202 32,518

As at 1 April 2005
– as previously reported 10,000 13,768 9,398 1,202 34,368
– effect of adopting HKAS 17 (1,850) – – – (1,850)

– as restated 8,150 13,768 9,398 1,202 32,518
Additions – 243 203 467 913
Disposals – (36) – (225) (261)
Revaluations 1,550 (2,047) – (199) (696)

As at 31 March 2006 9,700 11,928 9,601 1,245 32,474

Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 April 2004 – – 7,015 – 7,015
Provided during the year 149 2,728 722 479 4,078
Acquisition of a subsidiary – 25 5 20 50
Revaluations (149) (2,753) – (499) (3,401)

As at 31 March 2005 – – 7,742 – 7,742
Provided during the year 178 3,774 735 764 5,451
Revaluations (178) (3,774) – (764) (4,716)

As at 31 March 2006 – – 8,477 – 8,477

Net book value:
As at 31 March 2006 9,700 11,928 1,124 1,245 23,997

As at 31 March 2005 (restated) 8,150 13,768 1,656 1,202 24,776

Analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost – – 9,601 – 9,601
At valuation 9,700 11,928 – 1,245 22,873

As at 31 March 2006 9,700 11,928 9,601 1,245 32,474

At cost – – 9,398 – 9,398
At valuation 8,150 13,768 – 1,202 23,120

As at 31 March 2005 (restated) 8,150 13,768 9,398 1,202 32,518
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Company

Furniture and equipment 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

At cost:

As at 1 April 2005/2004 2,140 2,061

Additions 189 79

As at 31 March 2006/2005 2,329 2,140

Accumulated depreciation:

As at 1 April 2005/2004 1,507 1,115

Charge for the year 428 392

As at 31 March 2006/2005 1,935 1,507

Net book value:

As at 31 March 2006/2005 394 633

The fair value of the Group’s leasehold buildings as at 31 March 2006 of approximately HK$9,700,000 (2005 (as

restated): HK$8,150,000) was arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at that date by AA Property Services

Limited, on an open market, vacant possession basis. The gain on revaluation of approximately HK$1,728,000 (2005

(as restated): HK$1,683,000) was credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

The fair value of the Group’s plant and machinery as at 31 March 2006 of approximately HK$11,928,000 (2005:

HK$13,768,000) was arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at that date by AA Property Services Limited, on

a fair market value, continued use basis. The gain on revaluation of approximately HK$1,785,000 (2005:

HK$3,516,000) was credited to the asset revaluation reserve and a loss on revaluation of approximately HK$58,000

was charged to the income statement.

The fair value of the Group’s motor vehicles as at 31 March 2006 of approximately HK$1,245,000 (2005:

HK$1,202,000) was arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at that date by AA Property Services Limited, on a

fair market value, continued use basis. The gain on revaluation of approximately HK$565,000 (2005: HK$628,000)

was credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

The directors believe that the carrying value of furniture and equipment as at 31 March 2006 of approximately

HK$1,124,000 (2005: HK$1,656,000) approximates their fair values and, in view of the immateriality of the individual

amount involved, a professional valuation has not been carried out on these assets.

Had the Group’s property, plant and equipment been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying

amounts of leasehold buildings, plant and machinery, and motor vehicles as at 31 March 2006 would have been

restated at HK$5,453,000, HK$9,208,000 and HK$532,000, respectively.
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18. GOODWILL

HK$’000

At cost:

As at 1 April 2004 2,429

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34(ii)) 456

As at 31 March 2005 and 1 April 2005 2,885

Elimination of amortization accumulated

prior to adoption of HKFRS 3 (note 2) (577)

As at 31 March 2006 2,308

Accumulated amortization:

Provided for the year ended 31 March 2005 and

balance as at 1 April 2005 577

Elimination of amortization accumulated

prior to adoption of HKFRS 3 (note 2) (577)

As at 31 March 2006 –

Carrying value:

As at 31 March 2005 and 31 March 2006 2,308

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) that are

expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Landscaping

–  Design Landscapes International

(HK) Company Limited (single CGU) 365 365

Trading of plastic products

– Supertact Plastics Company Limited (single CGU) 1,943 1,943

2,308 2,308

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired. The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have been determined based on a value-in-use calculation

which in turn is based on financial projections of the Group. The discounted rate applied to the cash flow projections

is 13%.
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18. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The key assumptions on which management has based its cash flow projections of 15 years to undertake impairment

testing of goodwill are set out below:

(a) Budgeted turnover was projected with reference to the expected earnings from each CGU;

(b) Budgeted operating expenses with reference to the latest management accounts;

(c) For the business environment, there will be no material change in the existing political, legal, regulatory, fiscal

or economic conditions, bases or rates of taxation or duties in Hong Kong, or any of the countries in which

the Group operates or in which the Group companies are incorporated or registered.

19. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets 38,211 46,425

Share of net deficiency in assets (note 36 (ii)) (590) (318)

37,621 46,107

The Group’s share of profits of jointly-controlled entities for the year amounted to approximately HK$800,000 (2005:

HK$3,602,000). The Group’s share of retained profits of jointly-controlled entities as at 31 March 2006 amounted to

approximately HK$435,000 (2005: HK$8,921,000).
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities of the Group as at 31 March 2006 are as follows:

Percentage
of equity

Voting interest
Place of power and profit

incorporation/ controlled sharing
registration by the attributable Principal

Name Legal form and operations Group to the Group activities

AWG-JV Limited (i) Limited liability Hong Kong 50.0 50.0 Foundation
company piling works

Costain-China Unincorporated Hong Kong 33-1/3 40.0 Foundation
Harbour Joint piling works
Venture (i)

CCL Joint Venture (i) Unincorporated Hong Kong 33-1/3 33.0 Superstructure
construction

CHEC-CWF Limited (i) Limited liability Hong Kong 30.0 30.0 Highway
company maintenance

China Harbour– Unincorporated Hong Kong 25.0 15.3 Drainage
Transfield Joint improvement
Venture (i)

W.Hing-Kentech Unincorporated Hong Kong 60.0 70.0 Superstructure
Joint Venture (i) construction

MLL-CWF Joint Unincorporated Hong Kong 50.0 40.0 Foundation
Venture (i) piling works

China Harbour-CWF Unincorporated Hong Kong 50.0 49.0 Foundation
Joint Venture (i) piling works

Veolia Water (Zhuhai) Limited liability People’s 50.0 40.0 Provision of
Wastewater company Republic of wastewater
Treatment China treatment
Company Limited (i) (the “PRC”) service

Veolia Water (Zhuhai) Limited liability PRC 20.0 39.0 Provision of
Wastewater Treatment company wastewater
Operations Company treatment
Limited (i) management

service

Note:

(i) Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng or other HLB International member firms.

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

jointly-controlled entities would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 365,215 285,772

Total liabilities 261,489 174,155

Revenue 248,398 144,088

Profit for the year 13,694 13,320

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets 442 2,454

Amounts due from associates 18,862 9,870

19,304 12,324

Amounts due from associates

classified as current (note 24) (1,600) (1,554)

17,704 10,770

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The directors

consider that the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

The Group’s share of losses of associates for the year amounted to approximately HK$413,000 (2005: share of profits

of HK$176,000). The Group’s share of accumulated losses of associates as at 31 March 2006 amounted to

approximately HK$421,000 (2005: retained profits of HK$2,446,000).
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Group’s associates as at 31 March 2006 are as follows:

Percentage

Place of of equity interest

incorporation attributable to Principal

Name Legal form and operations the Group activities

Design Landscapes Limited liability Hong Kong 50.0 Provision of

International (Group) company landscaping

Company Limited (i) services

King Fine Development Limited liability Hong Kong 35.0 Property

Limited (i) company development

Powerluck Properties Limited liability British Virgin 35.0 Property

Limited company Islands development

Hypsos Leisure Asia Limited liability Hong Kong 42.5 Exhibition

Limited company project

management

Note:

(i) Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng or other HLB International member firms.

Summarized financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 79,714 26,886

Total liabilities 78,760 27,405

Revenue 721 22,047

(Loss)/profit for the year (980) 1,578
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 53,662 53,662

Amounts due from subsidiaries 203,855 191,968

257,517 245,630

Less: Provision for impairment (124,855) (124,855)

132,662 120,775

Amounts due from subsidiaries classified as current (25,650) (13,763)

107,012 107,012

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2006 are as follows:

Percentage

Place of Nominal value of equity

incorporation of issued attributable to Principal

Name and operations Legal form share capital the Company activities

Directly held

Wing Hing Group British Virgin Limited liability Ordinary 100 Investment

(BVI) Limited Islands company HK$320,000 holding

CWS International British Virgin Limited liability Ordinary 100 Investment

Trading Limited Islands company US$10 holding

Indirectly held

W.Hing Construction Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Superstructure

Company Limited company HK$102,300,100 construction

Deferred

HK$2,380,000

(Note (i))
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Percentage

Place of Nominal value of equity

incorporation of issued attributable to Principal

Name and operations Legal form share capital the Company activities

CWF Piling & Civil Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Foundation

Engineering company HK$48,500,000 piling

Company Deferred works

Limited HK$1,500,000

(Note (i))

Anpoint Engineering Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Electrical and

Limited company HK$14,000,000 mechanical

construction

Asian Creator Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Specialized

Engineering Limited company HK$10 building

works

Sunny Engineering Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Machine

Limited company HK$1,000 leasing and

investment

holding

W H China (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Investment

Limited company HK$2 holding

W H Interior Design and Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Interior

Contracting Company company HK$2 decoration

Limited

JCL Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 91 Environmental

company HK$10,000 engineering

SprayTec Engineering Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Trading of

Limited company HK$2 construction

machines

CSP (HK) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Investment

(Note (ii)) company HK$10 holding
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Percentage

Place of Nominal value of equity

incorporation of issued attributable to Principal

Name and operations Legal form share capital the Company activities

TCL Piling Specialist Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Foundation

Limited company HK$1,920,002 piling works

CHEC-CWF Joint Hong Kong Unincorporated – 51 Foundation

Venture piling works

Supertact Plastics Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 100 Trading of

Company company HK$4,000,000 plastic products

Limited

Design Landscapes Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary 51 Provision of

International (HK) company HK$1,240,000 landscaping

Company Limited services

Notes:

(i) The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and no rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general

meeting of the company. In the winding-up of a company, holders of the deferred shares are entitled to receive amounts

paid-up or credited as paid-up on shares after the holders of the ordinary shares of the company have received a total

return of HK$1,000,000,000 per share. As at 31 March 2006, all these deferred shares were owned by Wing Hing Group

(BVI) Limited.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group increased its equity interest in CSP (HK) Limited from 60% to 100% by

acquiring an additional 40% equity interest from Complete Success Limited. Further details are set out in note 34(i) to the

financial statements.
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENT

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted equity securities, at cost 1 –

On 19 October 2005, Sunny Engineering Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an

acquisition agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which Sunny Engineering Limited agreed to

purchase 800 shares of HK$1 each, representing 8% of the entire issued share capital of Wealthy Star Development

Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, at a consideration of HK$800. Details of the

acquisition were set out in the Company’s circular dated 11 November 2005.

The amount due from an investee entity, Wealthy Star Development Limited, as at 31 March 2006 of approximately

HK$13,164,000 is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the

amount due is unlikely to be repaid within one year and is therefore classified as non-current. The directors consider

that the carrying amount approximates its fair value.

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts receivable

Aged analysis by invoice date

Current to 90 days 55,673 75,188

91 days to 180 days 743 903

181 days to 365 days 651 1,366

Over 365 days 6,071 10,936

63,138 88,393

Contract retention receivables

Retentions held by contract customers 32,770 27,139

Less: contract retention receivables classified as

non-current assets (3,963) (6,762)

Retentions held by contract customers

included in accounts receivable under current assets 28,807 20,377

Amounts due from contract customers 22,608 22,384

Total accounts receivable as shown under current assets 114,553 131,154
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

The Group’s credit terms for its contracting business are negotiated with contract customers. Accounts receivable of a

non-retention nature are generally due within 30 days of certification by independent architects as to the value of the

contract works performed and claimed by the Group in its interim applications for progress payment.

Retentions are due on the expiration of contract maintenance/defects liability period, which is determined in

accordance with relevant contract terms and generally stipulated as 181 days to 365 days from the date of practical

completion of the contract works.

Included in accounts receivable are amounts due from contract customers which represent the excess of contract

costs incurred to date by the Group plus recognized profits, less recognized losses and progress billings raised by the

Group for respective contracts at the balance sheet date:

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contract costs incurred plus recognized profits

less recognized losses to date 416,749 406,766

Less: Progress billings (394,141) (384,382)

Amounts due from contract customers 22,608 22,384

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable as at 31 March 2006 is an amount due from a jointly-controlled entity of

the Group of approximately HK$5,363,000 (2005: HK$10,754,000), which is unsecured, interest-free and payable on

similar credit terms to those offered to other major customers of the Group. The receivable arose from the undertaking

of construction contract works during the year.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts receivable approximate their fair values.
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24. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,320 4,854

Amounts due from jointly-controlled entities 5,171 8,417

Amounts due from associates 1,600 1,554

Amounts due from minority shareholders 4,607 2,428

Amount due from a related company – 1,895

13,698 19,148

The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities, associates and minority shareholders are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the amount due from a related company, disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Maximum

amount

31 March outstanding 1 April

2006 during the year 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Total Success Worldwide Limited – 1,895 1,895

The balance represents claim liabilities recoverable from a related company which is beneficially and wholly-owned by

certain directors of the Company. The amount due was unsecured, interest-free and fully settled during the year.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables approximate their fair values.
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank balances and cash 18,117 13,025 68 333

Time deposits 21,292 35,025 – –

39,409 48,050 68 333

Less: Pledged time deposits:

Pledged for short term bank loans,

trust receipt loans and other

banking guarantee facilities (20,944) (35,025) – –

Cash and cash equivalents 18,465 13,025 68 333

As at the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits of the Group are mainly

denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.

Bank balances are interest bearing at prevailing market rate and have original maturity of three months or less. Time

deposits are made for varying periods of between one month and thirty-nine months depending on the immediate

cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposits rates.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits approximate

their fair values.

26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts payables

Aged analysis by invoice date

Current to 90 days 36,806 56,483

91 days to 180 days 5,596 2,043

181 days to 365 days 8,050 2,860

Over 365 days 24,450 21,522

74,902 82,908

Amounts due to contract customers 26,019 24,268

Total accounts payable as shown under current liabilities 100,921 107,176
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26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Included in accounts payable are amounts due to contract customers which represent the excess of progress billings

raised by the Group for the respective contracts over the contract costs incurred to date by the Group plus recognized

profits less recognized losses at the balance sheet date:

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contract costs incurred plus recognized profits

less recognized losses to date 430,520 802,652

Less: Progress billings 456,539 826,920

Amounts due to contract customers 26,019 24,268

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts payable approximate their fair values.

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Other payables and accruals 4,957 5,011

Amounts due to jointly-controlled entities 7,808 6,342

Amounts due to associates – 2,457

Amounts due to minority shareholders 1,043 15,106

13,808 28,916

The amounts due to jointly-controlled entities, associates and minority shareholders are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and accruals approximate their fair

values.
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28. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS, SECURED

Average Group

interest rate 2006 2005

per annum Maturity HK$’000 HK$’000

Mortgage loan 6.25% 2010 4,305 –

Term loan 8.07% 2006 1,620 –

Trust receipt loans * On demand 13,116 3,680

Bank overdrafts * On demand 64 3,707

19,105 7,387

* The trust receipt loans and bank overdrafts carry interest at the prevailing market rates.

The Group’s bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand 15,602 7,387

One to two years 801 –

Two to five years 2,405 –

Over five years 297 –

19,105 7,387

Less: Amount due for settlement within one year shown

under current liabilities (15,602) (7,387)

Amount due for settlement after one year 3,503 –

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The directors

consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2006, the Group’s banking facilities were supported by the following:

(i) legal charges over the Group’s leasehold land and buildings situated in Hong Kong, with carrying value of

approximately HK$10,392,000 (2005 (restated): HK$6,788,000);

(ii) legal charges over the Group’s investment property situated in Hong Kong, with carrying value of approximately

HK$4,400,000;

(iii) pledged deposits of approximately HK$20,944,000 (2005: HK$35,025,000) of the Group (note 25);

(iv) corporate guarantees to the extent of approximately HK$52.1 million (2005: HK$46.5 million) in aggregate

executed by the Company in respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company; and

(v) cross guarantees amongst certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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29. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax Revaluation of

depreciation assets Total

Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 1 April 2004 312 1,788 2,100

Deferred tax credited to the income

statement (note 13) (60) – (60)

Deferred tax credited to equity – (237) (237)

As at 31 March 2005 and as at 1 April 2005 252 1,551 1,803

Deferred tax credited to the income

statement (note 13) (392) – (392)

Deferred tax charged to equity – 221 221

As at 31 March 2006 (140) 1,772 1,632

Deferred tax assets

Loss available

for offset Decelerated

against future tax Revaluation of

taxable profit depreciation assets Total

Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 1 April 2004 2,672 14 124 2,810

Deferred tax charged to the income statement

during the year (note 13) (857) (14 ) – (871 )

As at 31 March 2005 and as at 1 April 2005 1,815 – 124 1,939

Deferred tax charged to the income statement

during the year (note 13) (804) – – (804 )

As at 31 March 2006 1,011 – 124 1,135

Net deferred tax liabilities as at 31 March 2006 (497)

Net deferred tax assets as at 31 March 2005 136

As at 31 March 2006, there were no significant unrecognized deferred tax liabilities (2005: Nil) for taxes that would

be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional

tax should such amounts be remitted. There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends

by the Company to its shareholders.
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTE

On 12 May 2004, the Company entered into a conditional subscription agreement (the “Note Subscription Agreement”)

with Grand Legend Limited (the “Subscriber”) and Mr. Lo Chun Yang in respect of the subscription of a convertible

note (the “Convertible Note”) with an aggregate principal amount of HK$11,500,000. The Convertible Note is interest

bearing at the rate of 1% per annum on the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Note from its date of

issue to the maturity date, which is eighteen calendar months after its date of issue (the “Maturity Date”). The

Convertible Note may be converted at the option of the Subscriber at a conversion price of HK$0.20 per ordinary

share at any time after its date of issue and up to the Maturity Date. Completion of the Note Subscription Agreement

took place upon fulfillment of the conditions set out therein in June 2004. Details of the above transactions were set

out in the Company’s announcement dated 12 May 2004.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Convertible Note was converted in full by the Subscriber at a conversion

price of HK$0.20 per share and accordingly, 57,500,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company

were issued to the Subscriber. All shares issued upon conversion rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing

shares of the Company.

Upon the application of HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”, the proceeds received from the

issue of the Convertible Note have been split between the liability component and an equity component. The equity

component, representing the fair value of the embedded option to convert the liability into equity of the Company, is

presented under “Convertible Note equity reserve” in equity. An effective interest rate of 5.13% per annum has been

used to determine the fair value of the liability component at initial recognition.

Group and Company

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Liability component at date of issue/beginning of the year 11,218 10,828

Interest charged (note 10) 68 493

Interest paid (14) (103)

Conversion of Convertible Note (11,272) –

Liability component at end of the year – 11,218

The interest charged is calculated by applying an effective interest rate of 5.13% to the liability component of the

Convertible Note from its date of issue through the date of conversion.
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31. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Number of shares Amount

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: HK$’000

Authorized:

As at 31 March 2005 and 2006 1,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid:

As at 1 April 2004, 31 March 2005 and 1 April 2005 287,500,000 28,750

Issue of shares upon conversion of

Convertible Note (Note 30) 57,500,000 5,750

Issue of shares for acquisition of additional interest

in a subsidiary (Note 34(i)) 17,000,000 1,700

As at 31 March 2006 362,000,000 36,200

On 30 August 2005, the Company issued 50,000,000 unlisted warrants to Complete Success Limited at a warrant

issue price of HK$0.02 per warrant as part of the purchase consideration for acquisition of additional interest in a

subsidiary (Note 34(i)). The warrants were issued to Complete Success Limited in registered form and constituted by a

warrant instrument, and rank pari passu in all respects among themselves. Each warrant carries the right to subscribe

for one share of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company at a price of HK$0.30 per share (subject to adjustments).

The exercise in full of the outstanding warrants would, with the capital structure of the Company as at 31 March

2006, result in the issue of additional 50,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company.

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to

eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber

employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds an

equity interest (the “Invested Entity”). Eligible participants of the Scheme include the directors and employees of the

Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity, suppliers and customers of the Group or any Invested Entity, any

technical, financial and legal professional advisers engaged by the Group or any Invested Entity, and any shareholder

of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity. The Scheme became effective on 29 August 2002 and unless otherwise terminated or

amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet

to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the

total number of shares in issue from time to time. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of

all share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in

aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 28 August 2002. Share options which lapse in

accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company will not be counted for

the purpose of calculating the 10% limit. The Company may seek approval of the shareholders in a general meeting

for refreshing the 10% limit under the Scheme, save that the total number of shares which may be issued upon

exercise of all share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company

under the limit as refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval of

the limit as refreshed. Share options previously granted under the Scheme or any other share option schemes of the

Company (including share options outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with the terms of the

Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the

limit as refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted to

each eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed

1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Each grant of the share options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of

their associates, under the Scheme must comply with the requirements of Rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules and must be

subject to approval by independent non-executive directors to whom share options have not been granted. In

addition, any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the

Company, or to any of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all

share options already granted and to be granted (including share options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to

such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the

Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of

each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to prior shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a

nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable

by the directors, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share options,

subject to the provisions for early termination set out in the Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereto, except as otherwise imposed by the

board of directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the

closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of

the offer of the share options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the daily quotation

sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the

nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The Company had no outstanding share options granted under the Scheme as at 31 March 2006 and for each of the

two years ended 31 March 2006.

33. RESERVES

Company

Retained

Convertible profits/

Share Contributed Warrant Note equity (Accumulated

premium surplus  reserve reserve  losses) Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 1 April 2004 166,405 51,562 – – (138,808) 79,159

Loss for the year – – – – (397) (397)

Recognition of equity component

of Convertible Note – – – 672 – 672

As at 31 March 2005 and

1 April 2005 (as restated) 166,405 51,562 – 672 (139,205) 79,434

Profit for the year – – – – 6,159 6,159

Issue of shares upon conversion

of Convertible Note 6,194 – – (672) – 5,522

Acquisition of additional interest

in a subsidiary

– Issue of Consideration Shares 1,700 – – – – 1,700

– Issue of warrants – – 1,000 – – 1,000

Capital Reduction (138,808) – – – 138,808 –

As at 31 March 2006 35,491 51,562 1,000 – 5,762 93,815

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of the Group reorganization scheme and represents the

excess of the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares

issued in exchange therefor. In accordance with the laws of Bermuda, the contributed surplus is distributable in

certain circumstances.

On 27 June 2005, the Company announced that it proposed to effect a capital reduction by eliminating approximately

HK$138,808,000 standing to the credit of the Company’s share premium account (the “Capital Reduction”). The

credit arising from the Capital Reduction would be applied to set off against the accumulated losses of the Company

as at 31 March 2005. The Capital Reduction was approved by the shareholders of the Company at a special general

meeting held on 25 August 2005 and became effective on the same date.
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(I) ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2006

On 27 June 2005, the Company announced that Wing Hing Group (BVI) Limited (“Wing Hing BVI”), a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company, had entered into an acquisition agreement dated 21 June 2005 (the

“Acquisition Agreement”) with Complete Success Limited. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, Wing Hing

BVI agreed to acquire from Complete Success Limited four shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital of CSP (HK)

Limited (“CSP”), representing 40% of the entire issued share capital of CSP, and the shareholder’s loan of

HK$14,063,184.68 owed by CSP to Complete Success Limited, at an aggregate consideration of

HK$14,063,188.68.

Prior to the entering into of the Acquisition Agreement, CSP was owned as to 60% and 40% by Wing Hing BVI

and Complete Success Limited, respectively. Complete Success Limited, being a substantial shareholder of CSP,

was a connected person of the Company and the transaction constituted a discloseable and connected

transaction on the part of the Company under the Listing Rules, further details of which were set out in the

Company’s circular dated 29 July 2005. The resolutions in respect of the transaction were duly passed by the

Company’s shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held on 25 August 2005.

The aggregate consideration has been satisfied as to:

(a) HK$3,400,000 by Wing Hing BVI procuring the Company to allot and issue 17,000,000 new shares of

HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company (“Consideration Shares”) to Complete Success Limited,

credited as fully paid, at a price of HK$0.20 per Consideration Share;

(b) HK$1,000,000 by Wing Hing BVI procuring the Company to issue 50,000,000 unlisted warrants of the

Company to Complete Success Limited at a warrant issue price of HK$0.02 per warrant;

(c) HK$4,946,207.55 by Wing Hing BVI paying in cash to Complete Success Limited; and

(d) HK$4,716,981.13 by Wing Hing BVI paying in cash to Veolia Water (Zhuhai) Wastewater Treatment

Company Limited (“Veolia Water (Zhuhai)” – a jointly-controlled entity of the Group) to settle the loan

of HK$4,716,981 owed by Complete Success Limited to Veolia Water (Zhuhai).
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(I) ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2006 (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of additional equity

interest in CSP is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Total consideration satisfied by:

Issue of Consideration Shares (a) 3,400 –

Issue of warrants (b) 1,000 –

Total non-cash consideration 4,400 –

Cash consideration (c) 4,946 –

Cash consideration (d) 4,717 –

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the acquisition of additional interest in CSP 9,663 –

Total consideration 14,063 –

In the opinion of the directors, the net fair value of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of CSP as at the

date of the aforesaid acquisition was insignificant.
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(II) ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment – 510

Accounts receivable – 5,578

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables – 126

Bank balances and cash – 825

Amounts due to related companies – (2,717)

Accounts payable – (3,813)

Minority interests – (250)

– 259

Goodwill on acquisition – 456

– 715

Satisfied by:

Cash – 532

Reclassification to interests in subsidiaries from

interests in associates – 183

– 715

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries is as

follows:

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash consideration – (532)

Bank balances and cash acquired – 825

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries – 293
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(III) DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of:

Bank balances and cash – 9

Amount due to a related company – (101)

– (92)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries – 92

– –

Satisfied by:

Cash – –

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as

follows:

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash consideration – –

Bank balances and cash disposed – (9)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries – (9)

The results of the subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2005 had no significant impact on

the Group’s consolidated turnover or profit after tax for that year.
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35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(A) AS LESSOR

The Group leases its investment property (note 15) under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated

for terms of one to two years. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancelable operating

leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 9 56

(B) AS LESSEE

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

As at 31 March 2006, the Company and the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancelable operating leases falling due as follows:

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 391 112 28 –
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i) As at 31 March 2006, the Group had executed guarantees in respect of performance bonds in favor of

contract customers of approximately HK$22,125,000 (2005: HK$48,908,000). In addition, as at 31 March

2006, the Company had executed guarantees in favor of contract customers in respect of the performance of

obligation under contracts by a jointly-controlled entity, China Harbour-CWF Joint Venture, with contract sum

of approximately HK$85,392,000 (2005: HK$84,938,000). China Harbour-CWF Joint Venture is jointly

controlled by China Harbour Engineering Company Limited, an independent third party, and CWF Piling &

Civil Engineering Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 March 2006, the Company had executed guarantees for approximately HK$36,000,000,

HK$44,100,000 and HK$8,750,000 in respect of the general banking facilities granted to CHEC-CWF Limited

(a jointly-controlled entity in which the Group has 30% equity interests), King Fine Development Limited (an

associate in which the Group has 35% equity interests), Powerluck Properties Limited (an associate in which

the Group has 35% equity interest), respectively.

As at 31 March 2006, the Company had executed guarantees for approximately HK$45,040,000 in respect of

the general banking facilities granted to Wealthy Star Development Limited (an investee entity in which the

Group has 8% equity interest).

(ii) As at 31 March 2006, certain subsidiaries of the Company had provided undertakings of financial support to

certain of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities in proportion to their equity interests in these entities, in order

that these entities could meet their obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due. The Group’s share of

the net deficiency in assets of these jointly-controlled entities as at 31 March 2006 in the amount of

approximately HK$590,000 (2005: HK$318,000) has already been accounted for (note 19) in presenting

these financial statements.

(iii) The Group was previously engaged in early 2000 in the undertaking of a piling work contract, which was

terminated by the contract customer during 2001 prior to the completion of contract works as a result of the

allegation of non-conforming piles. In the previous year, the contract customer demanded from the Group

the retrenchment of HK$5 million of the contract fees received by the Group, as compensation for early

termination of the contract works. In prior years, the contract customer was in the process of undergoing a

court compulsory winding-up and the provisional liquidator of the contract customer requested payment of

HK$8 million from the Group. Having considered legal counsel’s advice, the directors are of the opinion that

the claim is unlikely to succeed. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(iv) The Group was involved during the three years ended 31 March 2003 in the undertaking of two construction

contracts for the Hong Kong Housing Authority (the “HA”). In attending to these contract works, the Group

received requests for clarifications from the HA regarding the technical compliance of the piling work sections

of these contract works. Additional piling specification review, testing and other compliance procedures were

carried out to substantiate the satisfactory adherence to the technical specifications required for these contract

works and for any extension works required for the purpose of providing assurance to the HA. Provisions have

been made in the financial statements for the four years ended 31 March 2004 for all additional costs

incurred, as well as those necessarily required to be incurred, in attending to these and other additional works

reasonably anticipated by the directors to be necessary for the satisfaction of the HA.

As a result of the execution of these additional contract works, which were not anticipated at the stage of

contract inception, the contract period was prolonged with a corresponding overrun of the contract costs

incurred. In accordance with the contractual agreement, the HA is entitled to claim against the Group for

liquidated damages for the delay in completion of contract works. The maximum potential amount of liquidated

damages involved was assessed by the directors based on the contractual provisions of approximately HK$7.9

million, in aggregate, as at 31 March 2006. Having regard to the circumstances surrounding the prolonged

contract works as described above, the directors are however of the opinion that the Group has meritorious

defenses against claims for the liquidated damages. In a letter dated 12 December 2000 issued by the HA, the

HA confirmed that its building committee had considered the situation and approved the waiver of liquidated

damages on an ex-gratia basis if the delay was due to unanticipated complex ground conditions and/or

initiatives on supervision enhancement and design approval of piling works implemented after contract

formation. Accordingly, although the Group’s grounds of claiming waiver of these possible liquidated damages

has yet to be approved by the HA, the directors are of the opinion that the likelihood of such damages falling

to the Group is not probable and a provision therefor has not been made in presenting the financial

statements for the six years ended 31 March 2006.

In July 2001, the piling sections involved in these HA contract works were completed and, to date, the Group

has not received any complaint or indications from the HA regarding sub-standard piling works. The Group is

presently in the process of filing formal claims to the HA requesting compensation of the extra contract costs

incurred, which have already been fully charged to the income statement during each of the two years

ended 31 March 2002, as a result of the contract prolongation. However, as the negotiations with the HA

have not yet reached an advanced stage, in view of the uncertainties involved, no accrual for the potential

compensation revenue has been made in these financial statements.

(v) The Group has a contingent liability in respect of possible future long service payments to employees under

the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible amount of HK$3.3 million as at 31 March

2006. The contingent liability has arisen because, at the balance sheet date, a number of current employees

have achieved the required number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible for long service

payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated under certain

circumstances. A provision has not been recognized in respect of such possible payments, as it is not considered

probable that the situation will result in a material future outflow of resources from the Group.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(vi) The Group was previously engaged in early 2000 in the undertaking of a piling work contract. In 2001, the

Group made a claim against the main contractor of HK$7 million for variation orders in addition to the original

contract sum. In prior years, the main contractor submitted a counterclaim of HK$44 million for additional

costs incurred due to wrongful repudiation of the subcontract. Having considered the legal counsel’s advice,

the directors are of the opinion that the Group has a good chance of defending the counterclaim. Accordingly,

the directors consider that a provision for the counterclaim is not necessary.

(vii) The Group was engaged in the undertaking of a HVAC installation works contract in 2004. The Group made

a claim against the sub-contractor for loss and damage caused by the sub-contractor’s wrongful repudiation

of contract and other loss and damage due to completion of outstanding works and remedial works and

payment of Labor Tribunal claims to unpaid workers on the sub-contractor’s behalf, in the sum of approximately

HK$30.8 million up to 10 April 2006. The sub-contractor submitted a counterclaim for unpaid workdone and

loss of profit in the sum of approximately HK$1.8 million. Having considered the legal counsel’s advice, the

directors are of the opinion that the Group has a good chance of defending the counterclaim. Accordingly,

the directors consider that a provision for the counterclaim is not necessary.

(viii) A number of claims have been brought against the Group in respect of compensation for alleged personal

injuries sustained by construction workers during the execution of contract works. The directors believe that

any liabilities of the Group in respect of such claims will be covered either by the Group’s insurance policies,

or that the Group has a meritorious defense against such claims. Accordingly, the directors do not believe that

these claims will have any material adverse impact on the Group and, therefore no provisions have been

made in respect thereof.
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the

following significant related party transactions during the year.

Group

2006 2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Service fee income from

jointly-controlled entities (i) (9,630) (1,716)

Service fee income from an associate (i) (125) (865)

Sale of materials to a jointly-controlled

entity (ii) (12,406) (11,544)

Purchases of finished goods from a

jointly-controlled entity (ii) 18,505 16,780

Subcontracting fee paid to a

jointly-controlled entity (iii) 6,849 23,278

Contract sum received and receivable from

jointly-controlled entities (iv) (3,473) (93,804)

Notes:

(i) The service fee income was charged in relation to the provision of management and consultancy services and labors in

respect of the undertaking of construction works. The service charge was made on a cost recovery basis.

(ii) The directors consider that the sale of materials and purchase of finished goods were made in accordance with terms

mutually agreed between the parties.

(iii) The directors consider that the subcontracting fee was paid in accordance with terms mutually agreed between the parties.

(iv) The contract sum was received for construction contracts subcontracted to the Group. The directors consider that these

contract fees were charged in accordance with terms mutually agreed between the parties.
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(i) On 29 March 2006, the Company announced, among other matters, that it proposed to (i) implement a

share consolidation (“Share Consolidation”) pursuant to which every ten existing ordinary shares of HK$0.10

each in the issued and unissued share capital of the Company be consolidated into one consolidated share of

HK$1.00 (“Consolidated Share”); (ii) subject to the Share Consolidation, proposed a rights issue (“Rights Issue”)

to raise not less than approximately HK$18.1 million before expenses by issuing not less than 18,100,000

rights shares (“Rights Shares”) and not more than 20,600,000 Rights Shares at the subscription price of

HK$1.00 per Rights Share on the basis of one Rights Share for every two Consolidated Shares held on the

record date. Further details of the Share Consolidation and the Rights issue are set out in the Company’s

circular dated 3 May 2006.

The resolutions in respect of the Share Consolidation were duly passed by the Company’s shareholders at the

special general meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2006, and the Share Consolidation became effective

on 23 May 2006.

The Rights Issue, which was fully underwritten, became unconditional on 22 June 2006. Upon completion,

the Company issued 18,100,000 Rights Shares of HK$1.00 each at the subscription price of HK$1.00 per

Rights Share.

(ii) On 13 July 2006, the Company announced that W. Hing Construction Company Limited, a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional subscription agreement dated 13 July 2006 with

Design Landscapes International (HK) Company Limited, pursuant to which W. Hing Construction Company

Limited agreed to subscribe 42,711 new shares of Design Landscapes International (HK) Company Limited for

an aggregate cash consideration of HK$93,110. On the same day, Mr Keith Jeferey Dodd, an independent

third party, entered into a conditional subscription agreement dated 13 July 2006, pursuant to which Mr Keith

Jeferey Dodd agreed to subscribe 67,511 new shares of Design Landscapes International (HK) Company

Limited for an aggregated cash consideration of HK$147,174. Prior to the entering into of the aforesaid

subscription agreements, the entire issued share capital of Design Landscapes International (HK) Company

Limited was beneficially owned as to 51% by W. Hing Construction Company Limited and 49% by Design

Landscapes Investments Pty Limited, a company incorporated in Australia with limited liability.

Upon completion of the aforesaid subscription agreements, the enlarged issued share capital of Design

Landscapes International (HK) Company Limited shall be beneficially owned as to approximately 50% by W.

Hing Construction Company Limited, approximately 45% by Design Landscapes Investments Pty Limited and

approximately 5% by Mr Keith Jeferey Dodd. Accordingly, Design Landscapes International (HK) Company

Limited will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company but will continue to be an associate of the Company

upon completion. Further details relating to the aforesaid transactions are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 13 July 2006.


